
APPROVED 3/2/21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 1 of 4  
FEBRUARY 16, 2021  

MINUTES 

TOWN OF TOPSHAM 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

HELD VIA ZOOM FROM INDIVIDUAL RESIDENCES 

FEBRUARY 16, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 

_______________________________________________  

  

  

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Don Spann  

        Ronald Bisson   

        Larry Brann  

        Dan Flaig  

        Scott Libby  

        Joshua Spooner  

Bruce Van Note  

                    

MEMBERS ABSENT:   

  

All present  

STAFF PRESENT:  Director of Planning and Development, Rod Melanson, and 

Assistant Town Planner, Andrew Deci  

  

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  

Chairman Spann called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  The recording secretary took the roll 

call and noted that all members were present.  

  

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – There were no minutes to approve.   

  

C. OLD BUSINESS – None noted.  

  

D. NEW BUSINESS – None noted.  

  

E. PUBLIC HEARING  

  

1. CROOKER CONSTRUCTION HAS SUBMITTED AN APPLICATION FOR 

THEIR ANNUAL BLASTING PERMIT FOR THE QUARRIES ON LEWISTON 

ROAD AND RIVER ROAD, TAX MAP R02, LOTS 6 AND 7  

  

Board member Ronald Bisson recused himself from participation on this agenda item because of 

a possible conflict of interest.  Mr. Bisson is employed by Crooker Construction.  

  

Dick Morgan, Operations Manager for Crooker Construction reviewed blasting events from the 

previous year.  He said there were 15 events in 2020 with 116 seismograph reports. There was one 

event on October 14th that went over the state standards for air blast and immediate measures were 

taken to correct the process.  Mr. Morgan said he received complaints from a couple residents that 

blasting had occurred at 8:00 a.m. in the morning caused them concern.  Mr. Morgan said he 



APPROVED 3/2/21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 2 of 4  
FEBRUARY 16, 2021  

assured the residents that Crooker never blasts before 9:00 a.m. in the morning so Crooker couldn’t  

be responsible for the happening.  Mr. Morgan said the time of all events are given to residents 

within 250 feet of the blasting area.  If the times cannot be met for any reason, all the residents are 

called with the new scheduled time.  It was noted that the staff review garnered no comments and 

there have been no complaints received in the codes, planning or public safety offices related to 

the blasting activity.  Well turbidity monitoring is conducted and reviewed by third party engineers 

for verification of the data and the Board recommended the continuance of this monitoring to be 

sure turbidity levels are within the acceptable range.    

  

It was noted that no blasting powder is stored on site.  It is brought in for each event. Two video 

cameras are in operation during each event and showed to any interested abutters if requested.  

During his presentation of the application, Mr. Morgan noted a list included in the application of 

the 39 residents on the mailing list.  He said some residents request notification of the events with 

phone calls and others requested notification by email; each are met accordingly. The applicant 

proposes to blast approximately 350,000 cubic yards, with blasting events to occur from March 2, 

2021 to March 2, 2022 between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m., resulting in 20 days of 

blasting.  An ample Certificate of Insurance has been provided with the application.  

  

During discussion between Board members, Mr. Brann said he lives across the road from the 

blasting area and asked if he should recuse himself.  The Board was in agreement that Mr. Brann 

should continue to participate in the hearing.    

  

Board member Flaig asked where the actual blasting was going to occur.  He said Lot 6 and Lot 

34-D is the active quarry but the application notes Lot 6 and Lot 7.  Mr. Morgan said nothing has 

changed from the previous years and that blasting will only occur on Lot 6.  Mr. Flaig inquired 

about the blasting event in April 2020 when the DEP air blast pressure standard was proceeded 

and what the process is for follow up and mitigation with the DEP. Mr. Morgan said DEP must be 

notified within 48 hours. He said he called them and explained the plan in place to rectify the 

problem and they (DEP) were OK with it.    

  

After all comments were heard from Board members, Planner Deci explained the protocol for 

members of the public on how to be recognized if they wished to comment by raising their hand. 

The Chairman will open the meeting to receive public comments. Individuals were asked to give 

their name and address and to limit their comments to 3 minutes or less.    

  

The Public Hearing was declared open.  There being no one wishing to speak, the Public Hearing 

was declared closed.    

  

Planner Deci mentioned that earlier Mr. Flaig noted an error in the memo on the Findings of Fact.  

The year should be corrected from 2019 to 2020. Mr. Flaig asked if seismographs will be placed 

in the same place as last year.  Mr. Morgan said they will be and that he has one extra seismograph. 

He questioned if it should be placed in the Pejepscot Village area. This will be discussed further 

with the Town Manager.   

  

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Mr. Van Note, and it was unanimously  

VOTED  



APPROVED 3/2/21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 3 of 4  
FEBRUARY 16, 2021  

 To approve the Pejepscot Quarry Blasting Application for quarries on Lewiston Road and River 

Road, which is in compliance with the Standards in the Blasting Ordinance, Chapter 85 and the 

Standards in the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 225, Section 57, Extractive Industry, as set forth in 

the Findings of Fact on pages 3 to 5 in the memo to the Planning Board from Andrew Deci, 

Assistant Town Planner, dated February 10, 2021 with the following changes:  Map R-2, to be 

approved for Lot 6 only;  page 4, correct the year 2019 to read 2020 and to include the following 

Conditions of Approval:  

This approval is based on all submissions and information provided by the applicant at approval, 

whether referenced in any findings or conditions of approval.  

  

1. No deviations from the approval are permitted without prior approval from the Planning Board 

or Planning Office.  

  

2. All work shall be completed in accordance with Best Management Practices for Soil Erosion 

and  Sediment Control.  

  

3. This approval is conditioned on the applicant receiving all necessary federal, state and local 

approvals.   

  

2. TOPSHAM HOUSING AUTHORITY, LLC, 25 HACKMATACK ROAD/U23-075 –  

FINAL SITE PLAN AND FINAL SUBDIVISION APPROVALS FOR A 38 UNIT 

RESIDENTIAL COMPLEX – FAIRVIEW COMMONS  

  

This is before the Board for final subdivision and site plan/SLODA approvals.  Curt Neufeld, 

project engineer from Sitelines spoke to the project saying the Board reviewed the sketch plan for 

this project in March 2020 and approved the preliminary subdivision plan in October 2020.  Mr. 

Neufeld said there have been no changes to the plan since last before the Board and the focus will 

be to changes to the Stormwater Management Plan.  A Power Point presentation was given 

showing the area to be developed.  The total allowable units within the Topsham Crossing PRD 

area is 106 with the current project proposing to build 38 additional units at this time, with some 

single and two-story buildings.  

  

Mr. Neufeld said he has met with the water and sewer district and lines will be extended from 

Hackmatack Road.  Regarding lighting and landscaping, Mr. Neufeld said there is currently year 

round buffering of trees on the site and small plants will be placed where appropriate  The lighting 

plan consists of 15-foot LED street lights in the parking area which will comply with Topsham’s 

ordinance requirements.   

  

The applicant proposes to improve Hackmatack Road, between Shady Lane and Hemlock Drive.  

Sidewalks will be included as well as other necessary infrastructure in accordance with the Town’s 

standards.  It was noted that, in addition to the local approvals, the project also requires the 

amendment of the existing Site Location of Development Act (SLODA) permit.  The Town has 

delegated authority to review the permit’s standards on behalf of the State of Maine.   

  



APPROVED 3/2/21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 4 of 4  
FEBRUARY 16, 2021  

During discussion between Board members, all commented that this is a nice project for the Town 

and well put together.  At this point, the Public Hearing was declared open. Planner Deci reviewed 

the method for interested parties to be identified to comment.    

  

Comments were received from the following:  

  

Stuart Kay, Superintendent of the Topsham Sewer District – Mr. Kay said he is working with 

Mr. Neufeld to work out any issues.  He said this is a new sewer line and the Sewer District’s is 

expected to complete same in 1 to 2 months.  Mr. Neufeld said the project isn’t expected to start 

to be built until 2022 so the 1 to 2 month wait is not a problem.   

  

Peter Wiers, At west end of King Road – Mr. Wiers noted his right of way and asked how he 

would access it.  Mr. Neufeld explained that Hackmatack Road will end 50’ past the intersection 

of Shady Lane and it will transfer to a gravel road to meet with the King Road.  He referenced the 

placement of two catch basins.  Mr. Wiers expressed concern that, even with the catch basins, the 

road will flood.  Mr. Neufeld said this project will flow down stream of King Road, so shouldn’t 

cause any flooding upstream.  Mr. Neufeld told Mr. Wiers he would give him his phone number.  

He asked Mr. Wiers to call him at Sitelines to discuss his concerns further.    

  

There being no further comments to be heard, the Public Hearing was declared closed.  

  

Mr. Neufeld said that Planner Deci had asked him to be ready to discuss financial capacity for this 

project.  Mr. Deci was asked if someone from Town staff had a question on the financial capacity.  

Mr. Deci responded that financial capacity was usually discussed and wasn’t so he thought he 

should mention it.  John Hodge, Director of Topsham Housing Authority explained that before 

applications for financing for grants can be completed, the project must first receive approval from 

the Town’s Planning Board.   

  

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Mr. Van Note and it was unanimously  

  

VOTED  

To approve the Site Plan and Final Subdivision Plan application of the Topsham Housing 

Authority for a 38-unit residential housing project at Tax Map U23 Lot 75, with conditions as 

identified in the memo from Andrew Deci Assistant Town Planner, to the Planning Board dated 

February 10, 2021. The project has been reviewed against and meets the Standards of Review, as 

identified in Chapters 175 and 225 of the Topsham Code, including that of delegated review 

authority specified in Section 175-4.1 and Section 191-2.1 and to also include pages 1 through 10 

– Fairview Commons Recommended Conditions - Standard Conditions of Approval and the 

completion of all public utility comments and all outstanding technical comments.   

  

  F. ADJOURN  

Motion was made by Mr. Van Note, seconded by Mr. Brann, and it was unanimously agreed to 

adjourn the meeting at 8:00 p.m.  

               Respectfully submitted,  

             Patty Williams, Recording Secretary    


